
WORK SESSION AGENDA

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL

CITY HALL PRE-COUNCIL ROOM (A106)
56 CHURCH STREET

MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213

OCTOBER 24,2016,6:00 PM

The following elected officials shall meet [publicly] to make plans and committee assignments for the
November 7, 2016 organizational meeting of the City Council (pre-meeting to start upon conclusion of
the work session at approximately 6:15 p.m.)

Virginia C. Smith Alice B. Womack
William S. Pritchard, III Philip Black (council member-elect)
Lloyd C. Shelton Stewart Welch (mayor-elect)

PRE-MEETING AGENDA

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL

CITY HALL PRE-COUNCIL ROOM (A106)
56 CHURCH STREET

MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213

OCTOBER 24,2016,6:15 PM

1. Crestline Traffic Study presentation-Richard Caudle of Skipper Consultants

2. Set time for November 7* Organizational Meeting of the 2016-2018 City Council.



■|U/IO/^UID oiiy or Mountain BrooK iviaii - urganizationai meeting

City of
Mountain Brook

Steve Boone <boones@mtnbrook.org>

Organizational meeting
1 message

Steve Boone <boones@mtnbrook.org> Tue, Aug 30, 2016 at 4:53 PM
To: Alice Womack <aljcewomack14@gmail.com>, "Jack D. Carl" <jdcarl@bellsouth.net>, Lloyd Shelton
<lshelton@go2cpa.com>, "Oden Lawrence T." <lastvalhalla@aoLcom>, "Virginia 0. Smith" <wood967@aoLcom>, "William
S. (Billy) Pritchard III" <billyp@pm-j.com>
Cc: Sam Gaston <gastons@mtnbrook.org>

I have attached the minutes of the 2014 organizational meeting and a summary of the current Council liaison
assignments. The organizational meeting will be November 7 (time of your choosing). Planning Commission meets that
evening.

2014-149 Appoint Council representatives as follows:

Planning Commission (voting member) -Jack D. Carl

Board of Zoning Adjustment (liaison)

Parks and Recreation Board (liaison)

Emmet O'Neal Library Board (liaison)

Board of Education (liaison)

Finance Committee (voting member)

- Virginia C. Smith

- Virginia C. Smith

- Lloyd C. Shelton

- William S. Pritchard,

- Lloyd C. Shelton

Villages Design Review Committee (liaison) - Alice B. Womack

Editorial Board

Tree Commission (liaison)

Chamber of Commerce (liaison)

Parking Committee

Municipal judges

Public safety departments

All In Committee (voting member)

- Virginia C. Smith

- Virginia C. Smith

- Alice B. Womack

- Jack D. Carl

- Mayor Oden

- Mayor Oden

- William S. Pritchard,

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Steven Boone
City of Mountain Brook
P. O. Box 130009
Mountain Brook, AL 35213-0009
Direct: (205) 802-3825
Facsimile: (205) 874-0611

www. m tnbrook. org
httpJ/m tnbrookcity. blogspot com/
Twitter®: @mountain_brook

httnc'/Zmail nr»nnla nnm /mail/i i/1 /9i ii = 9>?.iU=ni^7'^ma1 A\ria\/»/=ntAn=inO/.'^Acont%9nr»rnani7atir\nal<'lnc=tri ia/tcoarrh=ni ior\fAth= "1 ̂ AHH7inh1'^QonnZlAclml= "1



Minute Book 86 769

MINUTES OF THE ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING OF THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA

NOVEMBER 3,2014

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, met in special public session to conduct its
organizational meeting as required by the laws of the State of Alabama in the City Hall Council Chambers
(Room A108) of the City of Mountain Brook on Monday, the 3rd day of November 2014, at 7:30A.M.

The meeting was called to order by the City Manager and the roll was called with the following
results;

Present: Jack D. Carl

William S. ("Billy") Pritchard, III
Lloyd C. Shelton
Virginia C. Smith
Alice B. Womack

Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor

Absent: None

Also present were City Attorney Carl Johnson, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven
Boone.

1. INTRODUCTION OF JUDGE PETE JOHNSON

The City Manager introduced Mountain Brook Municipal Court Judge Pete Johnson who will
administer the oaths of office.

2. INAUGURATION OF THREE CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS

Judge Johnson administered the oath of office (Appendices 1 through 3) to Council members
Womack, Shelton, and Pritchard who then assumed their duties as Council members, respectively, of the City
of Mountain Brook.

3. ELECTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT

Mr. Gaston then invited a nomination from the City Council for Council President. Council member
Carl nominated Council member Virginia C. Smith for Council President. Council member Prichard seconded
the nomination. A vote was conducted with the following results:

Ayes: Jack D. Carl
William S. ("Billy") Pritchard, III
Lloyd C. Shelton
Virginia C. Smith
Alice B. Womack

Nays: None

The meeting was then turned over to Council President Smith who declared that the motion carried by
a vote of 5-0.

4. ELECTION OF CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT PRO TEMPORE

Council President Smith then called for a nomination regarding the appointment of the Council
President Pro Tempore. Council member Carl nominated Council member William S. ("Billy") Pritchard, III
for Council President Pro Tempore of the Council. The nomination was seconded by Council President Smith.
Council President Smith then called for a vote with the following results:

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2014\20141103 Minutes (Organizational Meeting),doc November 3,2014



Minute Book 86

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President
Jack D. Carl

William S. ("Billy") Pritchard, III
Lloyd C. Shelton
Alice B. Womack

Nays: None

Council President Smith declared that Council member William S. ("BEly") Pritchard, 111 has been
appointed to be Council President Pro Tempore by a vote of 5—0.

5. CONSroERATION: MOTION (NO. 2014-147) FOR THE ADOPTION OF THE RULES OF
ORDER AND PROCEDURE (APPENDIX 4)

Council President Smith introduced the motion (in writing). It was then moved by Council member
Pritchard that the City Council adopts the Rules of Order and Procedure as presented by the Council President.
The motion was seconded by Council member Carl. President Smith then called for a vote with the following
results:

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. ("Billy") Pritchard, 111, Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton
Alice B. Womack

Nays: None

The President of the Council declared the motion (No. 2014-147) carried by a vote of 5—0.

6. CONSIDERATION: ORDINANCE (NO. 1921) APPOINTING THE CITY MANAGER
(EXHIBIT 1)

Council President Smith introduced the ordinance in writing. It was then moved by Council member
Pritchard that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would prevent the immediate consideration
and adoption of said ordinance be suspended and that unanimous consent to the immediate consideration of
said ordinance be given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be waived. The motion was seconded
by Council member Womack and was unanimously carried, as follows:

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. ("Billy") Pritchard, III, Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton
Alice B. Womack

Nays: None

The President of the Council declared the motion carried.

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council, Council member Pritchard then
moved for the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council member Shelton. Thereupon,
Council President Smith called for vote with the following results:

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. ("Billy") Pritchard, III, Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton
Alice B. Womack

J:\Minutes & Agendas\CounciI\2014\20141103 Minutes (Organizationai Meeting).doc November 3,2014



Minute Book 86 771

Nays: None

The President of the Council declared that the ordinance (No. 1921) is hereby adopted by a vote of
5—0 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same.

7. CONSIDERATION: ORDINANCE (NO. 1922) APPOINTING THE CITY CLERK
(EXHIBIT 2)

Council President Smith introduced the ordinance in writing. It was then moved by Council member
Shelton that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would prevent the immediate consideration and
adoption of said ordinance be suspended and that unanimous consent to the immediate consideration of said
ordinance be given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be waived. The motion was seconded by
Council member Womack and was unanimously carried, as follows:

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. ("Billy") Pritchard, III, Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton
Alice B. Womack

Nays: None

The President of the Council declared the motion carried by a vote of 5—0.

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council, Council member Pritchard then
moved for the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council President Smith. Thereupon,
Council President Smith called for vote with the following results:

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. ("Billy") Pritchard, III, Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton
Alice B. Womack

Nays: None

The President of the Council declared that the ordinance (No. 1922) is hereby adopted by a vote of
5—0 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same.

8. CONSIDERATION: ORDINANCE (NO. 1923) APPOINTING THE CITY TREASURER
(EXHIBIT 3)

Council President Smith introduced the ordinance in writing. It was then moved by Council member
Pritchard that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would prevent the immediate consideration
and adoption of said ordinance be suspended and that unanimous consent to the immediate consideration of
said ordinance be given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be waived. The motion was seconded
by Council member Shelton and was unanimously carried, as follows:

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. ("Billy") Pritchard, III, Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton
Alice B. Womack

Nays: None

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2014\20141103 Minutes (Organizational Meeting).doc November 3,2014



Minute Book 86

The President of the Council declared the motion carried by a vote of 5—0.

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council, Council member Pritchard then
moved for the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council President Smith. Thereupon,
Council President Smith called for vote with the following results;

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. ("Billy") Pritchard, III, Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton
Alice B. Womack

Nays: None

The President of the Council declared that the ordinance (No. 1923) is hereby adopted by a vote of
5—0 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same.

9. CONSroERATION: ORDINANCE (NO. 1924) APPOINTING THE ASSISTANT CITY
TREASURER (EXHIBIT 4)

Council President Smith introduced the ordinance in writing. It was then moved by Council member
Womack that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would prevent the immediate consideration
and adoption of said ordinance be suspended and that unanimous consent to the immediate consideration of
said ordinance be given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be waived. The motion was seconded
by Council member Pritchard and was unanimously carried, as follows:

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. ("Billy") Pritchard, III, Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton
Alice B. Womack

Nays: None

The President of the Council declared the motion carried by a vote of 5—0.

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council, Council President Smith then moved
for the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council member Womack. Thereupon,
Council President Smith called for vote with the following results:

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. ("Billy") Pritchard, III, Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton
Alice B. Womack

Nays; None

The President of the Council declared that the ordinance (No. 1924) is hereby adopted by a vote of
5—0 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same.

10, INAUGURATION OF THE AFOREMENTIONED OFFICERS

Judge Johnson then administered the oaths of office (Appendices 5 through 7) to Sam Gaston, Steven
Boone, and William F. Angell, respectively, who then assumed their respective duties as officers of the City of
Mountain Brook. [Note: The City Clerk administered the oath of office to the Assistant City Treasurer on
November 5,2014 (Appendix 7).]

J;\Minutes & Agendas\CounciI\2014\20141103 Minutes (Organizational Meeting).doc November 3,2014



Minute Book 86 773

11. CONSIDERATION: RESOLUTION (NO. 2014-148) APPOINTING THE CITY
ATTORNEY(S) FOR THE CITY (EXHIBITS)

Council President Smith introduced the resolution in writing appointing Bishop, Colvin, Johnson &
Kent (general legal services) and Stames, Davis & Florie, LLP (litigation services) as City Attorneys for the
City. It was then moved by Council member Pritchard that the resolution be adopted as presented by the
Council President. The motion was seconded by Council member Carl. Council President Smith then called
for a vote with the following results:

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. ("Billy") Pritchard, III, Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton
Alice B. Womack

Nays: None

The President of the Council declared that the resolution (No. 2014-148) motion carried by a vote of
5—0.

12. CONSIDERATION: MOTION (NO. 2014-149) APPOINTING THE MAYOR AND CITY
COUNCIL AS THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE MOUNTAIN BROOK

EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT AND NOMINATING THE CHAIRMAN

OF THE EMERGENCY COMMUNICATION DISTRICT BOARD

Council President Smith called for a motion. Council member Pritchard made a motion appointing
the Mayor and City Council as the Board of Commissioners of the Mountain Brook Emergency
Communications District and nominating the Mayor of the City Chairman of the Emergency Communication
District Board. The motion was seconded by Council member Carl. Council President Smith then called for a
vote with the following results:

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President
William S. ("Billy") Pritchard, III, Pro Tempore
Jack D. Carl

Lloyd C. Shelton
Alice B. Womack

Nays: None

The President of the Council declared that the motion (No. 2014-149) carried by a vote of 5—0.

11. ANNOUNCEMENT: THE NEXT MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL

Council President Smith announced that the next meeting of the Mountain Brook City Council will be
held on Monday, November 24, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church
Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. Please visit the City's web site fwww.mtnbrook.org') for more
information.

12. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the City Council at this time. Council President Smith
adjourned the meeting.

Steven Boone, City Clerk

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\20I4\2014U03 Minutes (Organizational Meeting),doc November 3, 2014



Minute Book 86

EXHIBIT 1

ORDINANCE NO. 1921

ORDINANCE APPOINTING THE

CITY MANAGER OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

BE rr ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as follows:

1. Sam Gaston is hereby appointed and employed as City Manager of the City of Mountain Brook,
Alabama, to serve at the pleasure of the Council or until his successor be duly appointed.

2. His duties shall be as now or hereafter fixed by the laws of the State of Alabama and by the
ordinances of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and such other duties as may be delegated to him tfom
time to time by the Council,

3. He shall give bond with sureties in the penal sum of $20,000.00, the premiums for which shall be
pmd by, and be the expense of the City, the same to be conditioned as provided in Section 11-43-21(c), Code
of Alabama, 1975.

EXHIBIT 2

ORDINANCE NO. 1922

ORDINANCE APPOINTING THE

CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as follows:

1. Steven Boone is hereby appointed as City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, to serve
at the pleasure of the Council or until his successor be duly appointed.

2. His duties as such City Clerk shall be as now or hereafter fixed by the laws of the State of Alabama
and by the ordinances of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and such other duties as may be delegated to
him from time to time by the Council.

3. His duties as City Clerk shall be in addition to those incident to the position in the classified civil
service in which he is or may hereafter be employed; and his compensation, boA for such civil service position
and as City Clerk, shall be that established for the civil service position under the schedules of the Personnel
Board of Jefferson County as implemented by the City Council from time to time for classified employees of
the City.

4. He shall give bond with sureties in the penal sum of $20,000.00, the premiums for which shall be
paid by, and be the expense of, the City. The bond shall be subject to approval by the Mayor.

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2014\2014n03 Minutes (Organizational Meeling).doc Novembers, 2014



Minute Book 86 775

EXHIBIT 3

ORDINANCE NO. 1923

ORDINANCE APPOINTING THE

CITY TREASURER OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as follows:

1. William F. Angell is hereby appointed as City Treasurer of the City of Mountain Brook, to serve
without compensation and at the pleasure of the Council or until his successor be duly appointed.

2. He shall give bond with sureties in the penal sum of $5,000.00, the premium for which shall be
paid by, and be the expense of the City. The bond shall be subject to approval by the Mayor.

EXHIBIT 4

ORDINANCE NO. 1924

ORDINANCE APPOINTING THE
ASSISTANT CITY TREASURER OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as follows:

1. John H. ("Jack") Martin is hereby appointed as Assistant City Treasurer of the City of Mountain
Brook, Alabama, serves without compensation and at the pleasure of the Council or until his successor be duly
appointed.

2. The Assistant Treasurer shall furnish a surety company bond in an amount approved by the City
Council for the faithful performance of his duties in the safe custody of the funds of the City. Such bond shall
be signed by good and sufficient sureties to be approved by the Mayor. The premium for such bond shall be
paid by the City from its General Fund.

EXHIBIT 5

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-148

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as follows:

The law firm of Bishop, Colvin, Johnson & Kent is hereby appointed as City Attorney for the City of
Mountain Brook, Alabama, to serve at the pleasure of the City Council at a retainer fee of $15,000 per month.
Said fees are to compensate the City Attorney for the regular and customary legal services performed for said
City, such as attendance at City Council meetings, advice to the Mayor, Council, and employees, and
preparation of ordinances and resolutions; said salary not to operate as compensation for extraordinary or
unusual services, such as handling municipal bond issues, public improvements, litigation, and the like for
which said attorney shall be paid such additional compensation as may be fixed by the Council.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that
the law firm of Stames, Davis & Florie, LLP is hereby appointed as City Attorney for the City with respect to
litigation services to be billed at their standard hourly rates, to serve at the pleasure of the City Council.

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\20I4\20141103 Minutes (Organizational Meeting).doc November 3,2014



776 Minute Book 86

OATH OF OFFICE

STATE OF ALABAMA

JEFFERSON COUNTY

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

I, Alice B. Womack, solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the
Constitution of the State of Alabama, so long as I continue a citizen thereof; and that I will faithfully and
honestly discharge the duties of the office upon which I am about to enter, to the best of my ability, so help me
God.

iceB. Womack

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 3rd day of November, 2014,

Orson L. ("Pete") Johnson, Jusge
Municipal Court of Mountain Brook

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2014\20141103 Minutes (Organizational Meeting),doc November 3,2014



Minute Book 86 777

STATE OF ALABAMA

JEFFERSON COUNTY

OATH OF OFFICE

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

I, Lloyd C. Sheiton, solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the
Constitution of the State of Alabama, so long as I continue a citizen thereof; and that 1 will faithfully and
honestly discharge the duties of the office upon which I am about to enter, to the best of my ability, so help me
God.

Lloyd C. Shyton

c.
£

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 3rd day of November, 2014.

Orson L. ("Pete")^hnson, Judge
Municipal Court of Mountain Brook

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2014\20141103 Minutes (Organizational Meeting).doc Novembers, 2014



Minute Book 86 779

OATH OF OFFICE

STATE OF ALABAMA

JEFFERSON COUNTY

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

I, William S. Pritchard, III, solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution of the United States
and the Constitution of the State of Alabama, so long as I continue a citizen thereof; and that I will faithfully
and honestly discharge the duties of the office upon which I am about to enter, to the best of my ability, so help
me God.

■William S. Pritchard, III

Of)

Q

Oh
Pm
<

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 3rd day of November, 2014.

Orson L. ("Pete") Johnson, Judge
Municipal Court of Mountain Brook

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Couneil\2014\20141103 Minutes (Organizational Meeting).doc November 3,2014



778 Minute Book 86

MOUNTMN BROOK OOOX AOIONlSTajmON

li eouadi is«in2i«r ibaiwfttr clactod to
d teats than hatd Mm fir a tone a
r yean to that tha mayor and jfil
al mcmben ara elected tor fiMfwur
a of office with the tarma to hoetat-
ct as pxofklad baraia. /

(Coda 1990, 9^30.7; Old. No. 1027. f / 4-l»-
2004) * ^

8m. S.2S. Cemid

Tlie mayor tball no aola^ or other «
for t»t« —lA ai to

•ttia >««r nfcuaM tf mjw; C
AU lira. 111.4M0. ^ '

Swi. 2-20.

perfbrminff tho datie/of thair om
(Code 1096. f O-TJ 9U. No. 547,\s)

Bee. 2.37.1 e voting.

For all ataouQu hrU aubaoquaat m the paa-
tagaof thisjActiaa. the oae ofESlhS aW") 100a
ballot tebq^ (MlOO) alactmle 1

» ea KS&S Aoteldarfc baOoi B
derioo tc/f Iltlp Amarica Vita Act CHAVA"^
pUts^o tystam which oompdee with Cc
Ala..yi7-2^ aad apy nguletfoaa adopted j

'». ie htithy attthorisad (hr tha 1 .
/oountinK, aad talwIatinKofany and all alee\
hretulta.

C>rd. No. 1774. f 1.6-33-2008}

DIVISION 2. BULES OF OBOBS AND
FROCBDURB

8*0. S-06. Moodrupe

(a) JtuUi tf pnemiart. Meotlmt of tha dty
council than be eoaduetad ta aeeordsBce with the
appItcaUa atatutat of tho atatib at implatMated
by tha ndee of proQodura costaiaad ia Uiia article.

(b) Hmtandptomtfrt^iierinm^r^gasafmiial
mmiingM. MeetiafB of tha oeuaeU aball be at
the city hall or auch other pleeee witfala tha dty
limita as tha oeundl may doiermioo.

(1) Btpilar meatiiica ihall be at sudi timce
oa datonniaad by tha

(2) Writtaa or oral nctioc of the time of aay
•pedal maetia( of the eoundl at authO'
riiad by Code of Ala. 1975. i 1I-4M ahan.
onlett auch BKnttpf ia asfloaneed at a
njular meetiof of cBuiidi. be (ivao to the
dly Boaaager to each eoundlmombor
atkoat ISboorainBdvaBeeoftheiMat-
inf. Tha finlure of aay of them to raceiva
aoch notice thai) not iaraUdato on octieo
lakfla at tuch meatinga ill

a. Sodt parson la pmaaat at tha moat
ing or, dtbar bsfiire or after tha
meetinf, waivei notloe thareof^ or

b. Sudi action ia latUied ot a mhm-
quent aoaatinf of Um council.

Tho busiaaas that may be tranaaetod at a apodal
maatinffdtall not bellmitod totha hamiadicatad
in tha notteai lb the extant practlcabla. notlea of a
apadal maatinf than alto ba pvoo to tha nuyor
and tha daifc. but tha fdlun of dthar or both of
tham to receivo eudi notlea shall not impair tha
validity and offlcaey oftho butiaaat trnnaactad at
thamaotinf.

(e) ASUndanet <aid porfie^xttton tfmoyoir. ctfy
manq|«r oacf otWci(y olJSciola; oddnraiipy cetM-
til

(1) Ibe BBJtyer and tha dty managar xhali
have tha privitage of partidpati^ In tba
eoondlh diaeuaaioRa and ddibontiona, but
tha riidtt to malm motiooa and to vota b
Umitad to coundhnambera.

(81 Partona other dtaa tha eoundlinombon,
mayor and ehy Boaaagar aball ba allowad
to addicaa tha couneQ whila in eeaifeo
ooly with tha pennbalan of and ottdtr tha
CBoditiaBa and ilmiutlaaa prcacxibad by
the cecnci) preatdont Any lueh peiaaa
■haS, wfaan first iQcpgnisad, atotc fab name,
•ddieaa and. if andieablo^ the poraoa or

Sao. f-AT. Informal dieoMeaions.

Unless obiaetioo b rabad by a eouadUnembar.
It aball ba in order to permit infbimal
oa auh{aet mattan brrai^ bafbxe the ceundl in
advanoa of tha formal preaantuHm of aay motian
with reapact tbarato.
(Coda 1896.12-12i Otd. No. 570.15)

Sao. 2-58. Ordlaaaeoatebelawrillagiwbea
CBotioaa to bo ba wiltlnip

All crdinancaa ahall ba in wrltiag. Other mo-
dona ihall ba leducad to writiog if nqnaatad by

(Coda 1995.12-15; OnL Na 670^ f 6)

Sao. 2-59. Beoordiofttf yoto.

•ftaa* and "naya" ahall ba taken and lecordad
ia tha minotaa whaaovar raquirod by atatuta or
requaatad by aay eoundlmambee.
(Coda 1996,13-14: Ord. No. 570.17)

Bum law raAimii iriimilTm tt vgia cab if Ah.
ItTO. I u-a-&

See. 2-50. Aiottaie to tabla

It aball ba la order to lay on tha taUa a
prapoaad amondmaat to a !**"■*'"£ maasura aad
such motion to tablo^ if ad^tad. aball not cany
with H or pieiuffiGa tha oi^aal maaauie unlaea
axpOdtly ao atatad in tbaaaetiea.
(Coda 1995, i 3-15; Old. No. 570, i 8)

See. 2-51. Aotiona not requiring aacond.

Idctieaa to racosaldar do net raquira a aacond
acr do appaab to tha eoundl lhai ruUags Vy the
chair on quaatioas of otdar.
(Coda 1988. i 3-15; Old. No. 570.19)

See. 3-62. Psrtleipaitlea of chair.

Tba chair nuy addieaa tho oooadl. make a
motion and any other matter at baua
without gay leqqitsBBaQt dttt hi lint rdioquiih
tfaacfaain
(Coda 1985, f 3-17; Ord. No. 570^ 110)

800. 8-65. Abaanoe of proaldent of eounoii,
prssldaat pro tampore or elorlt.

Dudng thfl abaanca of tha eoundl praaidaat or
dudng hb isahOlty to anrva, tha dutba, ra^osal-bQidas aad pewan of thaoaand] praaidaat, in>
dudiag thoaa ralatiag to hb baiag tha pnai^g
offioar cf tha cooneO, ahall deveb* upon and ba
diaehaigad by tha pnaidaot pro tampon of tha
coondL During dm abmosa or tnafa^ of tha
praaidmt pro tampon, tha fliactbsa of each office
ahall ha mvmvrfmt

by the oeuneil. vdi;^ appeiatmcat «t-ti ba to-
tared open tha eooadl minutes. During tba ab-
asaoa or {aahSity of tha dark to aarra. the eoundlahall appoint aoma other panon to paifbrm tha
dutba of tha dark, whidi appoiotmoat ahai^ ha
antarad open tha eoviaefl minutoa.
(Coda 1996| f 9-18; Ord. No. 570,1 lU

Stabbwir'

See. 3-54. Bulea of ordar adoptad.
Tba ndaa enntainad te Hobert'a Buloa of Or.

dor. Nowly Ravisad* ahall goram tha ceundlin aU
cstaa to wlaeh thay era applkaJbb and ia whid)
th^ an not iaooBsiitaat with tha aUtutae of tha
atata or with tha provbiona of tfab articla.
((kda 1906,13-19; Otd. No. 570^ 112)

Soe. 2-65. Coaaant agenda.

(a) At the Baoadag of tha maBtbsra of the dti^f*w
eoundl held prior to each regular meetiag of tfae^
of tha dty eoundl may raquaet that 0 reaoMonq_,
otbar item, ether than an ordiaiaca; which b ocfS
tha agenda for auch ngulor maodng CbiaatinyC
ha placed oa tha coaaant aginda (br tha maatiiioZt
No taadutiea or ether Ham dull ba placed on thyocnaent aganda ualaa it b diseiiaaad by thdT!Buu^on tftha dty couaeO attrnding ̂  prdi^^

(h) Any reeobthn or otbar item which a mam^
bar of tha dty muBdl raquaab ba pbcad on tha
easMBt «|ea& fiff B ai«e^ (dagi^, ■VaatUr^
fiwJ, ihaH bt pttuml ea th«
aguada unlan one or more racmban of the dty

zoff-ii-j

XOtmtAOt BJtOOX OOOB

group rapieaaatad; ha aball idaatuybia)-
aatf again by name each aubaequenttimo
ha b tacogidsad.

(5) Maatmga ahaO ba attaadad by tho dty
dark, tha dty attorney and auch other
offlcan. aguto or amplqyacs of tha dty aa
tha couQ^ may from Hma to time dotar^
mine.

(d) Ordir tf hutinnt. Tba order of boaioeas
shall ba aa diredad by tba eoundl prcaidsnt,
haw«far,»aycnnnriliTum»wr may m»fca
to 81a agenda.
(Coda 1995, H 3«-4-U; Ord- No. 570. If 1—4;
Old. Na 680; f 1. U'15-1064; Old. Na 1584.
3-34-3005)

tea nbth* U
cm* d Ab. lan. H u-414*. u-oaot dw woca ■> „
liM4l*«aaareiw«(W*cma«,OMl«dAta. 1191,1 U-a««
an«4aaw (T tb* dtr Cob ofAb. IBIS, I U-U-Un.

QouttcO ohfiet; which dtfaetiao mny ba made ai.
thar during tba pralimiaary maa^ or during
tha meetinf.

(c) Aa tha flnt Item oa tha aganda tor each
maatlaff, after the mioutea of the prior mMtlng flf
tba dly eooadl have bam ceaaldarad (uoleaa tho
adnutaa have been placed ea tha conaaat
tba pnaidank of tha dty eoundl, or etfaar pradd-
iaf mambor of tha dty eouibil CVraakUng offia-
tr*X ahaO annonnra agaitdi item numbor of
any maiten on tho aganda which hwva bean
aiaignad to tha coaaant agenda or tha preaidiag
eSoar aball dirset dta dty etark to read from tba
agenda a brief daseriptioa of aadt matter whidi
bos ban asaifRail to tha

(d) After the agonda number ofaadtaaattar on
tha eoisaat aganda has bean teed by tha praaid'
ing cfScar or the d^ dark has nad a brief
daacriptien cfttwh mittiiTen Aa can—nt
tha preaidiag officar ahall oak if any maBobar of
tha dty founcO would like to have any of such
mattan dlacuaaad. If a BMabar of tha dty eoundl
would Uka to hav» a matter on tba eoaaaat agenda
dlKunad, auch matter dull ba withdrawn from
tha coaaant agenda aad tt ahaB ba diacosaad whan
It la rsadud oa tha aganda. If a of tlu
audlaaoa aaka tot an of, or inlarma-
tton about, a matter n tba oBaant
praaidiaf officer mAy giva a brisf exjdsnatioa of
iudi nutter or may direct a monbar of the dty^
Btaffor another mombar oftha dty ceundl ta ilva
a hiiaf mplaiutimi cfairch matfar, huttt Aaq not
ba wHhdrawn firom du ctmaimt agenda.

(o) Tho praaHing offiear shall dun aak for a
motion with raspeet to the mattara oa tha oonaoat
agenda. AH mattara on the aganda ■*'-*1
ba eenaidand in the aama oaotioa. If a metfon to
adopt tha mattara on the conacnt agenda Is nude;
aaeoadad and approved by a mqieri^ of tha num
bers of the dty eoundl who arc pnwent at tho
mosliiig. all audi mattan ahaB ba oooaidand
ad^tad and la frill forco nad eflbet, juat aa thay
wmdd have boaa had aadt auch mattar bean
oooaidorad aad voted on a^arataly and appnved
by a nujority of tha aufflbara of tha dor councQ
who ware pnsant at du Buatiog.
(Coda 1995, I 3-80.1; Old. No. 1511, if h-5.
5-35-1888; Old. N« 1468,4-9-3001)

Sacs. 2-55—»88. Baaarvad.

ARTICLE m. OFFICERS AND
EMPLOYEES

DIVISION 1. GENERALLY

>. Snntyhoada.
(a) fiitx eforik Tha bond raquiiadXf tha dty

dark fiur tha foidiful ^
aad tha Wa custody of tba fiwda oiym dty ahaU
ba aa omipt appi^ ty the dtaWidl. Sudi
bond shallM dgncri by good aad/ufiBdant raia-
tiaa to ba lepxo^ by aayat lha pnmlua
for aueh bo^ ahaB ba paid by/iu dty from Ita
gaoaral fimd.X

(h) CiiyfisctLrmlluboadftoqaiisdoftba^
traaanrv for tbAfoJthfol pdfoctnaaea of hit du
ties and tba aafoYustady taO» fiuda of tha city
shaB be aa amouw apprayad ty tha ci^ eouaefl.
Such bond ahaB hdidgMy by good and aufficiat
■oratiM to ba appiWiy the nuyor. Tha pra-
mium for Bttdi b^ s^ ba paid by tba dty from
ita genaral ftind. V
(Coda 1995.1 3-5; On^o. 7; OnL No. 5)

Btata law tdliuiiii/BlnaM wi'titiaa 0*C» «f At*,
ww, If u-a-104.

mt| tana of offteot
dntiaa

(a) Than ia|(tanby crsataAtha of aada-
taat tasaaureyfor tha dty Than ahaB ba oa BMia

(b) ThoyWataattraasunnslil^baappaiatad
by tha dtwoouseiL Tha dty eonnca ahaU
OBA or tqp anbtaot tnosurw

»to dms, aluB csnaideAto ba in tba
t of tha dty Tha term of UBoa of tha

t traaxum or aadatant traaid{ren »h*tl
»with dit tana of cflto m tha dty

I; pgrevidiN^ that aithar or bath of UM asda-
f tnasuran nuy ba ramovod at aay Uma by
1 of a mafority of tha mamban of ^ dty

During dta abasaaa or disability V ~
Bt tnaaam; or both assistaat tmsor,

a an two asalstaattraaaarBn. tha dty ci

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2014\20141103 Minutes (Organizational Meeiing).doc November 3,2014



780 Minute Book 86

OATH OF OFFICE

STATE OF ALABAMA

JEFFERSON COUNTY

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

I, Sam S. Gaston, solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the
Constitution of the State of Alabama, so long as I continue a citizen thereof; and that I will faithfully and
honestly discharge the duties of the office upon which I am about to enter, to the best of my ability, so help me
God.

tiaston

IT)

Q
Z
U

<

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 3rd day of November, 2014.

Orson L. ("me") J<mnson, Judge
Municipal Court of Mountain Brook

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2014\20141103 Minutes (Organizational Meeting).doc November 3,2014



Minute Book 86 781

OATH OF OFFICE

STATE OF ALABAMA

JEFFERSON COUNTY

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

I, Steven Boone, solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the
Constitution of the State of Alabama, so long as I continue a citizen thereof; and that I will faithfully and
honestly discharge the duties of the office upon which I am about to enter, to the best of my ability, so help me
God.

Steven Boone ^

Swom to and subscribed before me this 3rd day of November, 2014.

^Orson L. ("Pete") Johnson,'Uudge
Municipal Court of Mountain Brook

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\2014\20141103 Minutes (Organizational Meeting).doc November 3, 2014



OATH OP OFFICE

O
o

s
o

s
o

STATE OP ALABAMA

JEFFERSON COUNTY

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

1. William F. AngeiJ. solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the
Constitution of the State of Alabama, so long as I continue a citizen diereo^ and that I will faithfully and
honestly discharge the duties of the office upon which 1 am about to enter, to the best of my ability, so help me
Ood.

s
5*
s

William F. Angell

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 3rd day of November. 2014.

Orson L. {"PeMr) Johnson, Judge
Municipal Court of Moun^n Brook

Q

OO
to

OATH OF OFFICE

STATE OF ALABAMA

JEFFERSON COUNTY

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK

I. John a (Jade) Martin, solemnly swear that 1 will support the Constitution of the Unltod States and
the Ckmstltution of the State of Alabama, so long as I continue a citizen thereof and tfutti will faithfully and
hmtestly discharge the duties of the oflOtee upon which 1 am about to enter, to the best of my ability, so help me
God.

John HfCJaok) Martin

Sworn to and subscribed before me this Sth day of November, 2014.

Steven LBooite » .
Citycicifc

s
0

o
o

00
as

APPENDIX?



SKIPPER

CONSULTING INC.

Crestline Village Traffic Study
Mountain Brook, Alabama

Prepared for:

The City of Mountain Brook
P.O. Box 130009

Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213
Phone (205) 802-2400 Fax (205) 879-6913

Prepared by:

Skipper Consulting, Inc.
3644 Vann Road, Suite 100
Birmingham, Alabama 35235
Phone(205)655-8855 Fax(205)655-8825

Revision 1:

October 2016

:  No. 20061 ; I
•  PROFESSIONAL ; =
•  / *

cY-

SIGNEC^

DATE::  lO/lpfib

boone
Text Box
Pre-meeting



Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama

Introduction

This report documents a traffic study performed to assess existing vehicular traffic operations and

pedestrian crossings at three locations within Crestline Village in the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama.

The three areas which are analyzed in this report are as follows:

•  Area #1 - Vine Street Pedestrian Crossing and Piggly Wiggly Access

•  Area #2 - The Intersection of Vine Street at Dexter Avenue

•  Area #3 - Church Street Pedestrian Crossings

The locations of the three areas are depicted in Figure 1.

The general scope of work for each area included conducting traffic counts, performing observations,

analyzing counts, traffic flow and pedestrian flow, and developing recommendations.

SKIPPER Figure 1 - Site Location Map

rlisfLrL Vi Ct ̂1 n't Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama September 2016

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 1



Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama

Area #1 - Vine Street Pedestrian Crossing and Piggly Wiggly Access

Current Conditions

Approval of the construction of the Piggly Wiggly required alteration of traffic flow in Area #1.

Specifically, the following traffic operations are required:

• West Jackson Boulevard is one way northbound operation 24 hours a day, 7 days a week along

its entire length from Church Street to Vine Street.

•  Vine Street is one way westbound operation 24 hours a day, 7 days a week from West Jackson

Boulevard to the western edge of the Board of Education building parking lot.

•  Vine Street is one way westbound operation during the period of 7:20 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. along its

entire length from West Jackson Boulevard to Dexter Avenue on school days.

•  Vine Street is two way operation at all other times from Dexter Avenue to the western edge of

the Board of Education building parking lot.

Traffic Counts

Vehicular and pedestrian traffic counts were performed at the intersection of Vine Street with the new

access the Piggly Wiggly parking lot and the pedestrian crossing from the Piggly Wiggly to the Mountain

Brook Athletic Fields on Wednesday, August 31, 2016 during the hours of 7:15 to 8:15 a.m., 12:00 to

1:00 p.m., 2:30 to 3:30 p.m., and 5:00 to 6:00 p.m. The traffic counts are depicted in Figure 2.

f

7:15-8:15 AM 12:00-1:00 PM 2:30-3:30 PM 5:00-6:00 PM

SKIPPER Figure 2 - Existing Traffic Counts - Area #1

) N s L I 11 t. 'i N r Crestline Village Traffic Study - Mountain Brook, Alabama

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 2



Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama

Observations

Observations of traffic and pedestrian flows in Area #1 were conducted on Saturday, September 10,

2016 from 10:30 to 11:30 a.m. This time period is the peak for combined traffic and pedestrian flows in

the area due to activities at the Mountain Brook Athletic Fields. During the observation period, the

following issues were noted:

•  Vehicles failed to yield to pedestrians in the crosswalk two times during the observation period

•  Vehicles traveled the wrong way on Vine Street east of the School Board driveway three time

during the observation period

Recommendations

Based on the traffic flows and observations, the following recommendations are made concerning traffic

and pedestrian flows within Area #1:

Recommendation itl - Stripe out the areas on either side of the painted crosswalk on the Athletic Fields

side of Vine Street. Vehicles parked in these areas block the ADA curb ramp and inhibit motorists' view

of pedestrians as they begin to cross. The recommended striping pattern is shown in Figure 3. Two No

Parking signs should also be posted on the fence in front of these striped-out areas.

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 3



Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama

NO NO
PARKING PARKING

ANY ANY
TIME TIME

REQUIRED 4" SOLID

WHITE LINE AT 45°

ANGLE, TYPICAL

SKIPPER Figure 3 - Crosswalk Striping - Area #1

f*/) N r. Crestline Village Traffic Study - Mountain Brook. Alabama September 2016

Recommendation #2 - Exchange the two existing DO NOT ENTER signs on Vine Street with standard

MUTCD R5-1 DO NOT ENTER signs (30"x30"), as illustrated on the following page:

DO

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 4



Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama

R5-1

Recommendation #3 - Install a new sign assembly on the corner of Vine Street at the driveway to the

Board of Education Building. The sign assembly should be on a square tubular post with signs as

indicated on Figure 4. Also, install new DO NOT ENTER pavement markings as shown on Figure 4.

fls-t

fe

SICTPPFR

r'ox s 1 7 1 7-^ <•' Crestline Village Traffic Study - Mountain Brook, Alabama

Figure 4 - Board of Education Parking - Area #1
September 2016

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 5



Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama

Recommendation #4 - Enforce existing No Parking signs on Vine Street.

Recommendation #5 - Continue No Parking pavement markings on Vine Street next to the sidewalk

from the alley to Dexter Avenue and post No Parking signs behind the sidewalk.

PARKING

R7-1

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 6



Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama

Recommendation #6 - Modify the existing one-way operation of Vine Street between Dexter Avenue

and the western edge of the Board of Education parking lot. The proposed times for one way operation

are weekdays from 7:30 a.m. to 8:00 a.m. and 2:30 to 3:30 p.m. The plan to implement the proposed

modification involves removing four existing signs and installing two new signs as shown in Figure 5. This

proposed modification was discussed with the Mountain Brook Board of Education Superintendent and

the Principal of Crestline Elementary School, and they had no objection to the proposed change.

7:30-8:00 AM

2:30-3:30 PM

MON-FRI

SKIPPER Figure 5 -Vine Street One Way Modifications

;<> S t I T t S <J I N I
Creslline Village Traffic Study - Mountain Brook, Alabama

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 7



Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama

Area #2 - The Intersection of Vine Street at Dexter Avenue

The intersection of Vine Street at Dexter Avenue was analyzed to determine the appropriate traffic

control for the intersection. Prior to the Piggly Wiggly project, the intersection of Vine Street at Dexter

Avenue was two-way stop controlled with the stop signs facing both approaches of Vine Street. The

traffic impact study report prepared for the Piggly Wiggly demonstrated that the existing traffic control

was not appropriate for the existing traffic flows at the intersection, and recommended that the traffic

control be altered to a two way stop with the stop signs facing both of the Dexter Street approaches.

The City of Mountain Brook adopted and implemented this recommendation. For this study, a re-

examination of the traffic control at the intersection was performed to determine the appropriate traffic

control for the intersection. Two alternatives were analyzed:

Alternative 1 - two way side street stop with stop signs facing Dexter Avenue (existing

condition)

Alternative 2 - four way stop

Traffic Counts

Vehicular and pedestrian traffic counts were performed at the intersection of Vine Street at Dexter

Avenue on Wednesday, August 31, 2016 during the hours of 7:15 to 8:15 a.m., 12:00 to 1:00 p.m., 2:30

to 3:30 p.m., and 5:00 to 6:00 p.m. The traffic counts are depicted in Figure 6.

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 8



Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama

's

IP

7-A5-8-A5A 12:00-1:00 PM

2:30-3:30 5:00-6:00 PM

SKIPPER
CrsfsHIre village Trsfflc St.iffy-Maumaln Br^ak, Alabama

Figures- Traffic Counts - Vfcie Street at Dexter Avenue

Ssptsmbsr ?016

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 9



Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama

Observations

Observations of traffic and pedestrian flow were conducted at the intersection of Vine Street at Dexter

Avenue on Wednesday, September 14 from 7:15 to 8:00 a.m. and 2:45 to 3:15 p.m. Observations

included vehicles which stopped on Vine Street even though they had right-of-way, vehicles which failed

to yield right-of-way on Dexter Avenue, and maximum queues on Vine Street westbound. The following

is a summary of the observations:

7:15-8:00 AM

Vehicles on Vine Street which stopped

Vehicles on Dexter Avenue which failed to yield

Maximum Queue on Vine Street Westbound

20 out of 163 vehicles (12%)

3 out of 47 vehicles (6%)

4 vehicles

2:45-3:15 PM

Vehicles on Vine Street which stopped

Vehicles on Dexter Avenue which failed to yield

Maximum Queue on Vine Street Westbound

15 out of 96 vehicles (16%)

0 out of 38 vehicles (0%)

3 vehicles

Microsimulation Model

A microsimulation model was prepared to test two alternative traffic control schemes for the

intersection of Vine Street at Dexter Avenue:

Alternative 1 - two way side street stop with stop signs facing Dexter Avenue (existing

condition)

Alternative 2 - four way stop

Comparisons were made for the a.m. peak period and the afternoon school peak period of traffic flow.

The results are summarized in Table 1.

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 10



Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama

Table 1

Microsimulation Model Comparison

Dexter Avenue at Vine Street

^ Ay4/d^4iiuede
Peak Hour Movement [ ̂ , Al0rnptiye^ I .  : Mer/fohVe 2

~ 1' bextgrCAv^hye Stop .;  IVay Stop .

Vine Street Eastbound 0 1

AM
Vine Street Westbound 1 6

Dexter Avenue Northbound 1 1

Dexter Avenue Southbound 2 1

Vine Street Eastbound 0 1

Afternoon Vine Street Westbound 0 3

School Dexter Avenue Northbound 1 2

Dexter Avenue Southbound 1 1

Board of Education Meeting

A representative of Skipper Consulting, Inc. met with representatives of the Mountain Brook Board of

Education on Friday, October 7, 2016. The primary subject of the meeting was to gather Board of

Education input regarding the potential of converting the intersection of Vine Street at Dexter Avenue to

a four way stop. Both the Superintendent of the Board of Education and the Principal of Crestline

Elementary School were opposed to the conversion of the intersection of Vine Street at Dexter Avenue

to a four way stop. The reasons stated for their opposition were as follows:

•  Prior experience of the traffic conditions with a stop sign for Vine Street showed that extensive

queues formed on Vine Street at peak traffic flow conditions.

•  The current traffic control at the intersection has practically eliminated queuing on Vine Street.

•  Concern that impeding traffic flow on Vine Street would result in traffic cutting through the

Board of Education parking lot to get to Church Street, particularly since the Piggly Wiggly

parking lot access to Vine Street is blocked during peak school traffic times.

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 11



Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama

Recommendations

Recommendation #i - The decision as to whether or not to modify the existing intersection of Vine

Street at Dexter Avenue to install a four way stop is a difficult decision to make. The traffic analyses

indicate that vehicle queues are shorter with the existing two way stop with the stop signs facing Dexter

Avenue; however, the microsimulation model shows that converting the intersection to a four way stop

does not yield excessive queues on Vine Street (a maximum queue of six vehicles, approximately 150

feet). Evaluations of the safety performance for conditions before the Piggly Wiggly modification to

current conditions are not valid since there is no recent crash history at the intersection. The Highway

Safety Manuai indicates that conversion of two way stop control to four way stop control results in a

48% reduction in crashes; however, since there is no crash history, no real safety benefit can be

expected.

Observations conducted by Skipper Consulting, Inc. indicate that the traffic flow at the intersection of

Vine Street at Dexter Avenue is operating as anticipated when the recommendation was made for

modifications as part of the Piggly Wiggly project. The current operation does not cause any excessive

queuing or undue delay to Dexter Avenue which requires mitigation. Since the traffic factors do not

contribute to a definite recommendation to either maintain the current stop sign configuration or

convert the intersection to a four way stop, the recommendation of this report is therefore strongly

influenced by the opinion of the Board of Education and Crestline Elementary School. It is recommended

that existing traffic control at the intersection of Vine Street at Dexter Avenue be maintained, with stop

signs facing Dexter Avenue.

Recommendation #2 - Stripe a crosswalk crossing Dexter Avenue on the east side of Vine Street as

shown in Figure 7.

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 12



Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama

SKIPPER Figure 7 - Crosswalk Striping - Dexter Avenue

^^s Ft t7n nF Crestline Village Traffic Study - Mountain Brook, Alabama September 2016

Recommendation ff3 - Remove yellow lines around No Parking areas in the vicinity of the intersection of

Vine Street at Dexter Avenue. These lines cause drivers to shy away from the edge of the roadway and

encroach in oncoming lanes.

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 13



Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama

Area #3 - Church Street Pedestrian Crossings

Traffic Counts

Vehicular and pedestrian traffic counts were performed on Church Street at the pedestrian crossings

located near Hoyt Street and Tibbett Street on Thursday, September 1, 2016 during the hours of 7:15 to

8:15 a.m., 12:00 to 1:00 p.m., 2:30 to 3:30 p.m., and 5:00 to 6:00 p.m. The traffic counts are depicted in

Figure 8.

7:15-8:15 AM 12:00-1:00 PM

2:30-3:30 PM

SKIPPEK

5:00-6:00 PM

Figure 8 - Existbig Traffic Counts - Area #3

CrestlifTB Village 1 raffle Sluoy ■ fvlcunlain Brook. Alaoama SspteinDor 20ia

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 14



Crestline Village Traffic Study Mountain Brook, Alabama

Crash Data

Existing crash data for the calendar year 2015 was obtained for Church Street from Euclid Avenue to

Montevallo Road from the City of Mountain Brook Police Department. A total of 16 crashes were

reported. No crashes involved pedestrians. The classification of crashes by type is as follows:

Parking Maneuver 6

Rear End 6

Right Angle 2

Fixed Object 2

Observations

Observations were conducted at the two pedestrian crossings on Church Street on Saturday, September

10, 2016 from 11:30 a.m. to 12:15 p.m. and on Monday, September 19, 2016 from 12:00 to 1:00 p.m. At

the crosswalk near Tibbett Street, there was very little pedestrian activity noted and no significant

conflicts were noted. At the Hoyt Street crosswalk, there were seven instances of drivers failing to yield

to pedestrians in the crosswalk.

Recommendations

Recommendation ttl - At the crosswalk near Hoyt Street, upgrade flashing beacons with additional rapid

rectangular flashing beacons which are activated by pedestrian actuation.

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 15


	Work Session and Pre-Meeting Agenda
	2014 organizational meeting info
	1.  Crestline traffic study



